Unapproved Approved

Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes
Monday, October 26, 2009

Attendance: Chairman Fred Kelley, Selectman Joe Duarte, 8abat Carleton Robie,
Selectman Richard Snow, and Administrative Asstsfardria Hansen.Absent: Vice-
Chair Rick Lazott

7:00 p.m. Chairman Kelley called the Public Meeting to arded immediately followed
with the Pledge of Allegiance.

The Board to accept Halls Mill Road and bond redudbn. Selectman Duarte asked
Road Agent Lewis if they were all set. Road Ageeivis noted the only thing that was
brought to his attention was that they weren’'t stitbe cistern had the float installed.
He suggested that the Planning Board review thedecBnan Duarte noted that in the
future the Planning Board would like to reviewiist. Road Agent Lewis explained the
road issues have been all addressed. ChairmaayKadked Acting Fire Chief Davis to
let the Selectmen’s Office know when he has lookethe cistern and then it should be
all set.

The Board to announce Superintendent of the Cemet®s Richard Anderson’s
resignation and discuss filling position. Chairman Kelley stated he didn’t want to
accept this resignation, but they understand why Afrderson has to resign. Mr.
Anderson noted he would stay on as long as he cbuldit would be from day to day.
Chairman Kelley replied that he understood and @adcept the resignation with deep
regret and as a good friend. Selectman DuartedablleAnderson has done a great job
on the cemeteries. Selectman Snow motioned topadbe resignation of Richard
Anderson as Superintendent of Cemeteries with degpet Seconded by Selectman
Duarte. All were in favor. Motion carried. Chaian Kelley addressed filling the
position and asked Selectman Snow if he had tak#d Mr. Gray. Selectman Snow
explained he would talk to Mr. Gray after a notiaes been posted for the position. Mr.
Anderson explained that Mr. Gray expressed intenetste position.

The Board to consider appointment of Paul Mortimer as a Firefighter/EMS
Provider based on Interim Fire Chief Davis’ recommadation. Selectman Duarte
explained Mr. Mortimer application had been sinaly.J Acting Fire Chief Davis noted
that Mr. Mortimer has been regularly attending nmeggt and is enrolled in a Firefighter 1
class. He has an EMS background as well SelecDuarte motioned to appoint Paul
Mortimer as an EMS provider/Firefighter to the Can&olunteer Fire Department.
Seconded by Chairman Kelley. All were in favorothn carried.

Approval of Previous Minutes: Public meeting minutes of 10/12/09. Selectman
Snow motioned to accept the Octobef" 12009 public meeting minutes as presented.
Seconded by Selectman Duarte. All were in favastibvh carried.



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 10326/ Page 2 of 8

Tax Rate Setting: Chairman Kelley announced the tax rate settinglevbe on October
30", 2009 at 9:00 a.m.

Other Business

Tax Collector Stamatelos recommendation for DeputyTax Collector. Chairman
Kelley explained that Tax Collector Stamatelos hasommended Paula Galatis as
Deputy Tax Collector. Selectman Snow motioned ppointment Paula Galatis as
Deputy Tax Collector based on Tax Collector Statnaterecommendation and
contingent upon a successful background check.orfsled by Selectman Duarte. All
were in favor. Motion carried.

Southeast Watershed Alliance: Selectman Snow motioned to recommend that the
Town join the Southeast Watershed Association ahelgadte a representative. Seconded
by Chairman Kelley. Chairman Kelley motioned toaemend that Selectman Snow be
the representative to the Southeast Watershednaélia Seconded by Selectman Duarte.
All were in favor of both motions. Motions carriedelectman Duarte commented that
at this point there is no charge, but if they durtsto get charged the Board should revisit
this. Selectman Snow stated it was his underdtaatdhere was a charge for joining that
might come after they establish the rules. Sitesy twould already be a member it
would be his expectation that they wouldn’t be dbleharge them. He didn’t believe
there would be any cost associated with it and dioake Selectman Duarte’s comment
under advice.

Conservation Commission easement updateSelectman Snow noted that Mark West
has been hired by the Conservation Commission tthelavetlands evaluation based on
the ARM (Aquatic Resource Mitigation) sub standardtte worked with the legislature
when they put this together, so Mr. West is familgith it. The Conservation
Commission has the expectation that Mr. West walldone with his work in November
and bring the results to the November Conservaiommittee meeting. Selectman
Snow would like Lori Sommer to attend the Decemb&F Conservation Committee
meeting. They would like to have Bear Paw, thed®as) Lori Sommer, and anyone else
interested so they could wrap this up. In additmthis they have the Clay Pond (Gagne
property) easement, in which they could talk to BBaw and ask them to have that
available to them. The language would have tovadable to the Selectmen before that
and then they could finish that one up on Decenib8ras well. The Hooksett portion of
the Clay Pond easement is supposed to be finishéaekend of the year also. Selectman
Snow mentioned that there are three other progettiat they are actively involved in
looking at and possibly doing something with. @héhe properties is the Rand property
on High Street. The Rand’s came to a Conservafliommittee meeting a couple of
months ago and they voted to pursue a conservamsement on that property.
Selectman Snow noted the he, Conservation ChamrSWélderman, and Jim Lindsey
walked that property last week, before the meetifbey suggested at the Conservation
Committee meeting that they get an appraisal of peperty, so Conservation
Committee and the Rand’s had some idea of the \&lam easement on that property.
The normal way the Conservation Commission doesishiby signing an agreement with



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 10326/ Page 3 of 8

the landowner. The Conservation Commission wil par the appraisal out of the
conservation fund contingent upon the Rand’s ealytdoing a conservation easement.
If they don’t end up doing an easement, they valf pack the Conservation Commission
when they sell the property. The Conservation C@sion wants the consensus of the
Selectmen on whether they want them to pursue tHishey do an appraisal and the
Board backs out they lose that money. They doantwo put the money up front to do
an appraisal without an expectation that the Selectagree to this on some level. The
Rand easement is contingent upon the Board of edecreviewing the easement and
agreeing to the language. The easement would cotftai language that would do the
ARM mitigation. Chairman Kelley asked if the RamaVere going put all of their land in
an easement. Selectman Snow replied they ardbacduse they have a house on their
property. He noted the Rand’s can make a decisiowhether or not they want to do
this after the appraisal. The next step wouldobaecide how much land they would like
to cut out for the house and then they have iteyge. The Conservation Commission
would pay for that survey which would show where dasement existed. It's a 30 acre
piece which runs from High Street all the way outBaker Road. If that piece was
developed it would open up the back into Baker Ro&lde Conservation Commission is
very interested in this piece, because it wouldp hefotect up to Baker Road and
Kinnicum Pond. These locations are part of the Tewonservation areas. Selectman
Snow noted there are three other properties thes€weation Commission would like to
consider. Selectman Duarte noted he appreciated #ie hard work Selectman Snow
has been doing on this, but he didn’t want to radmout all of the potential easements
because he hasn't even heard about one yet. Higl ke get more information about
this property. In addition, he would like to sebere the property is located, what they
can do with it, and what other options there ateeothan putting it in an easement. It
might be a good piece of property for resident@hls. Selectman Duarte stated if it's a
good idea he will probably go along with it. Hédtfilaere wasn’t enough information on
the property. Selectman Robie stated he would ékbrief summary on the other
properties. Selectman Snow explained the Randepips between High Street (at Jane
Drive) and the Brock property heading towards Hedtks The Rand’s explained to the
Conservation Commission that they would like to pateasement on the back half of
their land prior to the time they decide to sell iSelectman Snow stated he wasn'’t
thinking in terms of what else they can do with ldred. He would like to respect the land
owner’s wishes and help them get an easement anldéinel. Selectman Duarte stated
they have 30 acres that is already in current nddlze tax payers make up the difference
on the tax bill. He felt if there was a possililidf us recouping some of the penalty
money on the land use change tax maybe they coalddt it.

Selectman Snow noted the Conservation Commissientdiked with Richard Gilbert.
Mr. Gilbert has a piece of land on Langford Roadhwva lot of land in the back and
behind his 28 acres there is another 70 acresuhatdown to Aunt Mary Brook Road.
There is a possibility of getting to the 70 acrieotgh the 28 acres. Selectman Snow
stated if Mr. Gilbert was interested in selling lasd for a conservation easement that
would lock the 70 acres up. It would also savertls®eme cost if someone wanted to put
Aunt Mary Brook Road back in.



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 10326/ Page 4 of 8

Selectman Snow stated the Conservation Commissioawed other possible easements
for map 404 lot 118 (Donovan Road) and map 411lan@38 (Donovan Road). Road
Agent Lewis noted the property is located nearéileoad bed. Selectman Snow further
noted it was in the Kinnicum pond area. Select®aow explained an interest has been
expressed and they have not had the opportuntgikavith the property owners.

Selectman Snow explained the Conservation Comnmdsionally voted to pursue the
Rand easement and now they are looking to getpgpeasal done. They would like to
know the Selectmen’s interest, so they don’t spdred money and get left hanging.
Selectman Robie referred to the Clay Pond easemidet.noted the he and Chairman
Kelley recently attended a Conservation Commissiaeting and spoke in favor of it.
Selectman Robie stated that Mr. West will do thdlamel survey for the mitigation.
Once this is done they will contact Lori Sommer léd her know they have new
information. Selectman Snow stated they would tikget this finalize at the December
15" meeting. Selectman Robie replied it probably waiilbe finalize because it's going
to have to go through Lori Sommer at DES, the Coapsl the EPA. Selectman Snow
stated they can’t hold the Sanders off forever thase something that could happen in
the future. If they have done everything that égessary to satisfy the Board and our
attorney, the easement should allow the mitigattobe done after the fact. He can'’t in
good conscience tell the Sanders they have torgitnd and wait. Selectman Robie
noted they have involved the Town Attorney withsthnd he recommended until this is
finalized there isn’t anything that says they carsé this land for mitigation. Selectman
Snow replied that he agreed with that on a spebiisis. Selectman Robie stated they
are not holding anybody up. The Sanders can Isaflland to anybody at anytime, but
their wishes are to have the land put in consesaatiSelectman Snow agreed but the
Town would lose the opportunity to have any input the conservation easement.
Selectman Robie thought the Sanders Trust askedathdy to put the land in a
conservation easement and through the process ydiaxl stepped up except for the
Town of Candia to do this. He felt they could watie this land, but until they are
positive they can’'t do anything. Selectman Rolétesl he has been paying attention to
this from the beginning and felt he knew what thshas of the trust were. Selectman
Snow agreed the Sanders were going to put an easeméhe land, but the language of
the conservation easement is a function of the lpasho are buying it. Bear Paw is the
primary on this and if they can’t get the fundsiirthe Candia Conservation Commission
then they will get it from somewhere else. Thegglaage on the easement would change
and the Town won’t get the mitigation. Selectmasbie felt it was the Boards feeling
that if they were going to spend conservation mahey were going to get a mitigation
easement. Selectman Snow agreed with Selectmaie’®cbncept and thought it was a
wonderful thing. He suggested talking with Attyaler and ask if they can finalize the
Sanders easement on Decembéf tfith the clear understanding (of DES, the Corps,
EPA) this property will be eligible (for mitigatigrbased on the language that's in the
easement at this time. Selectman Robie notedtbegn’t gotten to the Rand property
yet and felt it wouldn’t be eligible. He mentiontte Sieminski property and would be
interested in it. Selectman Snow noted that pieamn the Conservation Commission’s
list. Selectman Duarte stated he liked what thas€ovation Commission is doing, but
couldn’t vote on anything this evening. Chairmagll&y thought if it was in the wording



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 10326/ Page 5 of 8

of the Sanders easement, when the mitigation doesidh, that piece of land becomes
part of it. He noted the last time he spoke witls. Mdbommer's he was under the
impression it would have to be finalized beforeythmuld move forward with it.
Selectman Robie stated they are getting close ttingethis done. The State told him
that if there was already an easement on the gsopéry would they want to use it for
mitigation. Selectman Snow replied this is whaytlare trying to establish. Selectman
Robie stated that is what they are trying to avdite questioned why they would open
back up an easement that is already in conservattomad Agent Lewis explained the
language would be in the easement to allow iin O years the State decided to let this
happen, it could because it was in the languagheobasement. He further explained it
could take years for the State to decide what taing to do with this. It won’t happen
in a month or two, so at this rate the Sandersneasemight not ever happen and non of
the others. The idea is to have the languagearettsement. Selectman Robie agreed
and if it's approved something about mitigation @wWkdobe in the language of the
easement. Road Agent Lewis explained to have tbfamathe State to make all of the
changes and go to legislation will take a long tingelectman Snow noted the language
has been changed to reflect the information aldeintitigation. Selectman Robie felt it
wouldn’t have to go to legislation to get pass&bad Agent Lewis replied there were a
lot of things to change at the State level to altbis to happen. Eventually a lot of these
people are going to get tired of waiting. SelectrRobie stated if they are waiting for
mitigation that’s different. Road Agent Lewispéained it was both, if they agreed to
put that language in their agreement then theybasgcally waiting for the funding and
the State to change their rules to allow this tppes. The Conservation Commission
was thinking if it's in the easement language thatland can be used for mitigation at
any future date that it becomes available (at tia¢eSevel) to do that, so they don’t see
our money go out of Town. The idea is that theneyostays in Town. These people
who like to put their land in an easement are noihg to want to wait forever.
Selectman Robie replied they don’t have to waithéy would like to put their land in an
easement they can. He further stated if someoméswta purchase the Sanders property
with an easement on it they have the right to @o. tt5electman Snow noted the concept
with the Sanders easement was the Conservation @Gsiom wanted to have input on
what could be done on that property. They wanteldlalve public access to it. Selectman
Snow further noted the money that the Conservafiommission is putting out would be
to ensure the people of Candia would always hagesscto that property. Selectman
Robie stated that before the Sanders even cameet@€donservation Commission that
piece of land was for sale, hoping that someoneldvpurchase the land and put it in
conservation. When that didn’'t happen they wenth® Conservation Commission
asking for an easement. Selectman Snow statedstheyan opportunity with this land
from the beginning. Selectman Robie replied headwith Selectman Snow on this and
will continue to stick with him. Selectman Snovwked if they could meet with Atty.
Mayer and Lori Sommer of the DES. Selectman Rodpdied once they have the ARM
package done. Selectman Snow replied they shoaie it by November 17
Selectman Robie stated he has heard what Sele@&nwm and Road Agent Lewis had to
say and he would look at this with an open mind.



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 10326/ Page 6 of 8

Selectman Snow asked the Board how they wouldthkeConservation Commission to
deal with people who would like to put their lamda conservation easement. Selectman
Robie replied that he wasn’t sure how much intetlestTown had in the smaller pieces
of property. He noted the lots with back land aedy little frontage have little value.
There was some discussion about how much frontaigées to get into the back land.
There was some discussion on appraisals. SeledRobie felt whoever is interested in
putting their land in an easement should pay ferappraisal, not the Town. Selectman
Snow replied he would not recommend to the Conserv&€ommission that they spend
the money for an easement or purchase withouingedith appraisal. The appraisal has to
come from qualified people (by the IRS) to lookpabperty for what a conservation
easement is worth. Land owners are giving up theldpment rights. Selectman Snow
asked if he should go back to the Conservation Cigsion and tell people they're not
going to look at easements. Selectman Duarte wididato look at each piece of land
individually and then look at the advantages amddisadvantages. He felt that until the
mitigation matter is settled they shouldn’'t beitgl people anything. Selectman Snow
stated the first step in the process is to knowtitna land is worth. Road Agent Lewis
stated people should skip going to the Conservaliommission and go directly to the
Selectmen. Selectman Robie replied he wasn't worfaof that and if people are
interested in conserving their land they shouldaggthe Conservation Commission. Road
Agent Lewis stated the Conservation Commission sand tied. Selectman Robie asked
for Road Agent Lewis’ opinion of the land on Higlré®t. Road Agent Lewis replied it
would make a wild life corridor someday; it presesva way for wildlife to get through
the Kinnicum Pond, High Street, North Road, and N&wgton Road area. Selectman
Robie stated every one of those lots runs from Sighet to Baker Road and on the other
side is from High Street to North Road. SelectrRabie clarified that the Conservation
Commission wanted to know if the Board had anyregke so they can go forward and
have the appraisal done. Selectman Snow repli@dwhs correct. Selectman Robie
stated he might not agree with Road Agent Lewigitp but for the appraisal he would
give his okay. Chairman Kelley stated if the pmypés appraised and it comes in for less
money, will the property owner pay back the mon&glectman Snow stated they would
enter into an agreement, if they don’t not sell #asement to the Town, the Town will
get their money back. Selectman Robie stated tise4€0 feet of frontage, so there is
enough for one house lot. He further noted thatl laould be used for multi family
development. He would rather see an easementlhanits. Selectman Snow clarified
it was the consensus of the Board that the Consenv&@ommission move forward with
an appraisal on the property. The purpose isb diut what the fair market value of that
easement would be with the understanding the Towauldvget the money back if they
sold the easement to someone else. However, rith#ers work out they will take the
next step which would be to review the easememgjuage. Selectman Robie thought the
easement would be an easy process, because therét wauch mitigation on the
property. He further thought it shouldn’t be muotave the appraisal done. Selectman
Snow thought it was around a couple of thousanthdol

DOT fly over for aerial mapping: Selectman Snow explained the DOT is doing a fly
over of the entire State for aerial mapping. THeyhis once every century. It gives you
the photographic detail to do one of three thinlgstp make the tax maps better, it works



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 10326/ Page 7 of 8

well with planning, and helps Conservation Comnoissi with the natural resource
inventory. The State has offered to municipalities option to enhanced resolution (6
inch pixels). The cost is $6,000 to $9,000. Hs trentioned this to the Conservation
Commission who was not enthusiastic about it. pleke with the Lamprey Watershed
Association about it and there may be some gramemas well. They would have to
submit a nonbinding letter of intent from the Towtating they are interested in what it
would cost to get the enhance resolution. Selatt8row noted they could put it in as a
warrant article as well. He felt they should subthe letter of intent and the Board
would have to authorize Chairman Kelley to do thiswould be a long time before they
had the opportunity to do this again. Selectmahi®&elt they didn’t need an enhanced
product. Selectman Duarte stated the PlanningdBadian’'t show much interest in doing
this. Chairman Kelley stated if they were goingptarsue this it would have to be a
warrant article. He felt $6,000 to $9,000 was & db money. Selectman Duarte
suggested calling the DOT tomorrow to see if thidlylsve the option of doing this.

Thibeault Sand and Gravel: Selectman Snow noted he was going to have tiytést
the Raymond Planning Board. He went to the OctdB8rmeeting, which was for the
extension of the permit for Raymond Sand and Graxehvation. They were discussing
three excavation companies. There are three gpagah the Town of Raymond that are
not properly permitted by the State or Federal Gavwent. They chose to continue the
hearing until December or January. It appearsRagmond Sand and Gravel are trying
to get out of bankruptcy, so they can sell to somdgb The interest appears to be one of
their neighbors. Selectman Snow stated he wasggmincome up with a list of the
Town’s concerns concerning Thibeault Sand and GraMe had a traffic count done in
front of the Candia Recycling Center. He notedt tha will be testifying at the
November 8 meeting. Some of the concerns he has come upisvithe traffic, the
aquifer (on the Raymond and Candia side), and bitexs. All of these concerns will
be expressed to the Raymond Planning Board. t&®ecRobie stated he would like to
review these concerns first. Selectman Snow meetidhat he reviewed the Raymond’s
traffic study, but it didn’t mention anything aboRbute 27. He reviewed the traffic
study done for Liquid Planet, but questioned thiedits of the traffic study. He noted a
member of the Raymond Planning Board questioned rdeent change in the
configuration on Route 27. Selectman Robie notede road needs to be reconfigured
that is something the Raymond Planning Board anekeldper have to agree on.
Selectman Snow stated this issue was raised ascgreo(pre reconfiguration on Route
27). There was some further discussion aboutrdiicc Selectman Robie stated he
would like to see the list concerns before SelentrBaow meets with the Raymond
Planning Board. Selectman Snow replied that heldvorovide him the list.

Recent ash complaint: Selectman Duarte mentioned he was recently madecaviaa

complaint concerning ash on a resident’s propeuty t brush burning at the Recycling
Center. He noted they were looking for some sohgito the problem i.e. a screen for
over the burn pit, burning the brush more frequentie would like to send the resident
an apology letter and let them know we are workamga solution. Selectman Robie
stated they should seriously look at a chipperabse wood chips do have a value.
Chairman Kelley thought in 2010 they wouldn’t baded to burn any more. Chairman



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 10326/ Page 8 of 8

Kelley noted that Pleasant Hill Landscaping migattaking brush and they chip wood.
He further noted he is in the process of workingscomething with them.

6 Deerfield Road: Chairman Kelley noted he recently attended theguwvake and the
family members commended the Fire Department ongdaifantastic job. They thanked
the volunteers of the Town as well. Chairman Keleanked everyone for what they
contributed. Selectman Duarte thanked Candia Lurdbelonating the smoke detectors.
Acting Fire Chief Davis noted there will be somathiin the newspaper on this and it
will be posted around Town. Chairman Kelley askeitl was one smoke detector per
household. Acting Fire Chief Davis stated they 'tiilave a set amount. Selectman
Robie stated it's as many as people need.

Announce Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting Date:The next regularly scheduled
Selectmen’s meeting will be on Novembé&ra 7:00 p.m.

Selectman Duarte motioned to adjourn at 8:15 pSaconded by Chairman Kelley. All
were in favor.

Respectfully submitted,
Andria Hansen, Recording Secretary



